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City of Lynchburg 
Procurement Division 
900 Church Street 
Lynchburg, Virginia  24504 
Telephone No.: (434) 455-3970 
Fax No.: (434) 845-0711                     
                                                    Addendum for Request for Proposal 

Architectural/Engineering Services for the LRWWTP Operations Building Renovation 
 

2016-007 
 
Date:    07/13/2015 
From: Lisa Moss, Buyer VCA 
RE: Addendum No.  1 
 
This Addendum supplements and amends the original Plans and Specifications and shall be taken into 
account in preparing proposals and shall become a part of the Contract Documents. The Offeror shall 
indicate receipt of this Addendum and all previously issued Addenda on the Title Page.   
 
This addendum includes items covered in the Pre-Proposal meeting held on July 9, 2015. 
 

1. When does the City anticipate the construction phase of this project will start?  
The schedule is to complete design drawings by April 2016.  Construction funding is available 
in July 2016.  The goal is to complete the majority of this project prior to the WWTP CSO 
Headworks project starting construction. 

2. The RFP states the WWTP has to maintain operations 365 days a year, 24 hours a day. Does this 
include the lab?  
The lab must be operational at all times the plant is operational.  A phased construction 
approach will be required. 

3. When will the construction on the Headworks building start? 
Construction of the CSO Headworks project will likely start in late 2017.  Work on this project 
will likely start at the Headworks building and would not impact the Control Building until 
later.   

4. What are the security concerns for the WWTP during the various phases of this project and final 
completion?  
The primary need is to separate the plant operations and laboratory areas from public 
interface.  Administration and staff need to be available to the public at the front of the 
building, but the laboratory and critical operational areas should have a controlled access.  
The laboratory needs to be secure at the end of the day when lab staff leaves. 

5. Will there be any additional projects attached to the RFP and resulting contract?  
The Basis of Design included a restroom addition to the odor control building.  This may be 
included in the project depending on funding availability, but Proposers are not required to 
include this in their design proposal.    The elevator renovation also is dependent on 
construction funds, but should be analyzed during the preliminary engineering phase to 
determine options and costs. 

6. Is there a master plan available?  
There is a site master plan that is out of date and is not relevant to the building improvements.  
The Basis of Design is the best planning document for the Operations Building. 

7. Can the proposal be printed on two sides of a page or does it have to be single page?  
The proposal can be printed on two sides, however each side will be considered a page and 
proposal is not to exceed 30 pages, not including cover, but including all other materials. 

8. Are there any audio visual requirements, any AV integration needed? 
Any audio visual requirements and/or AV integration would either be listed in the Basis of Design or 
would be a re-establishment of existing AV.  For example if an option presented included the second 
floor layout being modified and the conference room relocated, the existing AV would need to be re-
established at the new location. 
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9. A comment was made about using WWTP process water for HVAC operations.  Process water 
has a temperature variance of 4 to 40 degrees Celsius. 
 

10. Items requested at the Pre-proposal meeting: 
a. Asbestos Report 
b. Lead Paint Analysis – does not exist.  Note that lead paint is likely encapsulated behind 

sheetrock walls.  In addition, an area of mercury contamination is located in the current lab 
and has also been encapsulated. 

c.  Aerial photograph of site 
d. Floor plan drawings of the Operations Building. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 
























































































